ADMISSION GUIDELINE FOR GRADUATE STUDENTS KOREAN GOVERNMENT SCHOLARSHIP PROGRAM 2019 UNIVERSITY RECOMMENDATION



SEOUL NATIONAL UNIVERSITY
Office of Admissions

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1. Application Timeline1

2. Offered Programs1
3. Admission Quota1
4. Applicant Eligibility1
5. Required Documents4
6. Instructions for application submission4
7. Important Notes for All Applicants5
8. Selection Criteria6
9. Duration of Korean Government Scholarship Program6
10. Korean Language Course7
11. Scholarship Payment Details7
Appendix 1: Offered Programs List9
Appendix 2: Contact Information15
Appendix 3: GPA Conversion Table16
Appendix 4: SNU Campus Map ·······17
Application Forms are available to download on the SNU office of admissions homepage (Notice Board)
- http://en.snu.ac.kr/apply/info => Overview => Announcements =>
Admission Guideline for 2019 KGSP Graduate Programs (University Recommendation)

1. Application Timeline

Step	Timeline	Notes
1) Application Submission	Feb. 1 st (Fri), 2019 ~ Feb. 28 th (Thu), 2019 by 17:00	* Required documents should arrive at the SNU Office of Admissions during this designated period. * A proof of parent-child relationship is mandatory to submit.
2) Interview	After March 8 th (Fri.), 2019	The time and method of interview will be notified via individual contact(e-mail or phone).
3) Recommendation to NIIED	April 4 th (Thu) 2019	Seoul National University recommendation recipients will be notified via individual contact.
4) Final Selection by NIIED	May 2019 (TBA)	Results will be announced on the NIIED website: http://www.studyinkorea.go.kr

Postal Address:

KGSP Manager, Building 150, Room 401, Office of Admissions, Seoul National University, 1 Gwanak-ro, Gwanak-gu, Seoul 08826 (+82-2-880-6971, hsong12@snu.ac.kr)

2. Offered Programs

Master's and Doctoral program: Refer to <Appendix 1>

* SNU only recruits degree programs. Research programs are not applicable.

3. Admission Quota (Recommendation from SNU to NIIED)

Up to 20 persons (up to 3 per country)

4. Applicant Eligibility

(1) Nationality

- Applicant and their parents must hold foreign citizenship.
- * Korean citizens, including those who hold dual citizenship, are NOT eligible to apply.
- * Applicants and their parents who had previously held Korean citizenship must submit the document of the renunciation of their Korean citizenship.

 $(\divideontimes{\sf Exception: For\ overseas\ Korean\ applicants\ holding\ Japanese\ citizenship,\ if\ their\ parents\ holding\ parents\ parents\ holding\ parents\ parents\ holding\ parents\ paren$

'Permanent Residency Permit' within Japan while holding Korean citizenship, are eligible to apply.)

(2) Age

■ Must be under 40 years of age as of September 1, 2019 (born after September 1, 1979)

^{*} The dates above are subject to change depending on the university's internal circumstances.

■ Academic professors who are under 45 years of age as of September 1, 2019 (born after September 1, 1974) and hold citizenship of one of Official Development Assistance (ODA) recipients listed in the table below are eligible to apply.

Afghanistan, Albania, Algeria, Angola, Argentina, Armenia, Azerbaijan, Bangladesh, Belarus, Belize, Benin, Bhutan, Bolivia, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Botswana, Brazil, Burkina Faso, Burundi, Cambodia, Cameroon, China, Colombia, Comoros, DR Congo, Republic of the Congo, Costa Rica, Cote d'Ivoire, Djibouti, Dominican Republic, Ecuador, Egypt, El Salvador, Eritrea, Equatorial Guinea, Ethiopia, Fiji, Gabon, Gambia, Georgia, Ghana, Guatemala, Guinea, Guyana, Haiti, Honduras, India, Indonesia, Iran, Iraq, Jamaica, Jordan, Kazakhstan, Kenya, Kyrgyzstan, Laos, Lebanon, Lesotho, Liberia, Libya, Madagascar, Malawi, Malaysia, Mauritania, Mauritius, Mexico, Moldova, Mongolia, Montenegro, Morocco, Mozambique, Myanmar, Namibia, Nepal, Nicaragua, Nigeria, Pakistan, Palestine, Panama, Paraguay, Peru, Philippines, Rwanda, Saint Vincent and the Grenadines, Senegal, Serbia, Sierra Leone, Somalia, South Africa, Sri Lanka, Sudan, Syria, Tajikistan, Tanzania, Thailand, Timor-Leste, Togo, Tunisia, Turkey, Turkmenistan, Uganda, Ukraine, Uzbekistan, Venezuela, Vietnam, Yemen, Zambia, Zimbabwe

(3) Degree Requirements

- Applicants must hold or must be expected to hold a Bachelor's, Master's or a Doctoral degree by August 31st, 2019. (Applicant eligibility will be rescinded if applicant fails to obtain the appropriate degree by August 31st, 2019).
- * Applicants who apply for the Master's program must hold a Bachelor's degree or a diploma that is equivalent to or higher than a Bachelor's degree.
- * Applicants who apply for the Doctoral program must hold a Master's degree or a diploma that is equivalent to or higher than a Master's degree.
- Applicants who have completed a Bachelor's, Master's or Doctoral degree in Korea are NOT eligible to apply. (※Exception: Applicants who are overseas Korean Adoptees, Former and current KGSP Scholars)
- Applicants who have been enrolled at Korean universities as exchange students are eligible to apply.
- A former or current KGSP scholar who is holding or is expected to graduate as of August 31, 2019 can only re-apply for the higher degree once (Bachelor's→ Master's, Master's→ Doctoral)
- Applicants who are expecting to obtain the relevant required degree or diploma by August 31st, 2019 must submit a certificate of degree or diploma expectation, and submit the official certificate of degree or diploma to NIIED by August 31st, 2019. (If not, disqualified for this program)

(4) Grades

- GPA: Grade Point Average, CGPA: Cumulative (overall) Grade Point Average
- All applicants must have maintained the overall grade point average (CGPA) equivalent to or higher than any ONE of the following from their respective universities:
 - 2.64 on a 4.0 scale;
 - 2.80 on a 4.3 scale;
 - 2.91 on a 4.5 scale;
 - 3.23 on a 5.0 scale; or

- Score percentile: 80% or above (Exception: KGSP scholars must hold the grade of 90% or above)
- Refer to the Appendix 3 for the GPA conversion table.
- If an applicant has a CGPA below the minimum grade requirement, the applicant will be disqualified and application will be disregarded.
- If an applicant holds a transcript that does not include information on grade point average or is unable to convert his or her grades into any one of the GPA criteria mentioned above, then applicant must submit an official document issued by the applicant's university describing the university's grade system.
- * If an applicant cannot refer to the attended institution, he/she can use a transcript conversion service at http://www.wes.org, or http://www.foreigncrediats.com. Please mind that these websites are fee-based service and SNU will only accept an officially converted transcript by them, but not a sample one.

(5) Health

- All applicants must be in good health, both mentally and physically, to study in Korea for the full duration of degree or research programs.
- All applicants must submit Form 8, "Personal Medical Assessment" at the time of applying.
- All applicants who pass the 2nd round of selection must receive comprehensive medical checkup and submit the certificate of health and medical examination result issued by a medical doctor or a licensed physician.
- If an applicant is found to be in one of the following conditions, the applicant will be disqualified in the final round of selection:
 - An applicant is tested positive on drug tests;
 - An applicant owns serious illness that prevents him or her to study abroad for long period of time including the full duration of degree or research program in Korea.

(6) Restrictions

- Prospective applicants who have attained a Bachelor's, Master's, or a doctoral degree in Korea are NOT eligible to apply.(※Exception: Overseas Korean Adoptees and Former or Current KGSP scholars)
- Former applicants who had withdrawn from the scholarship after being selected as KGSP scholars(applicable to those who did not come to Korea after being selected as KGSP scholars and who had resigned from their studies) in the past are strictly NOT eligible to apply.

(7) Preference

- An applicant who has attained certified scores for their proficiency in Korean or English may be given preference. Some examples include the followings:
- Proficiency in Korean: TOPIK (Test of Proficiency in Korean)
- Proficiency in English: TOEFL, TOEIC, or IELTS Academic (TOEFL ITPs are NOT acceptable)

■ Descendants of Korean War veterans will receive additional 5% of the total marks.

5. Required Documents

Application Check List	Master's	Doctoral
1. Application Form (Form 1)	0	0
2. Personal Statement (Form 2)	0	0
3. Statement of Purpose (Form 3)	0	0
4. Two Letters of Recommendation(Form 5)	0	0
5. KGSP Applicant Pledge(Form 7)	0	0
6. Personal Medical Assessment (Form 8)	0	0
7. Bachelor's Diploma or Certificate of Degree: original copy	0	0
8. Bachelor's Degree Transcript: original copy	0	0
9. Master's Diploma or Certificate of Degree: original copy	-	0
10. Master's Degree Transcript: original copy	-	0
11. Applicant's Proof of Citizenship	0	0
12. Parents' Proof of Citizenship	0	0
13. Official documents Indicating Parent-child Relationship(Birth certificate, Household register, etc.)	0	0
14. Certificate of TOPIK Score(original copy), if applicable	Δ	Δ
15. Certificate of TOEFL,TOEIC, IELTS Score(original copy), if applicable	Δ	Δ
16. Published Papers, if available (one or two)	Δ	Δ
17. Awards, if available	Δ	Δ
18. Certificate of Korean Citizenship Renunciation (*Previous Korean Citizenship Holders ONLY)	Δ	Δ
19. Adoption documents (*Overseas Korean Adoptees ONLY)	Δ	Δ

^{※ &}quot;△": only if applicable/available

6. Instructions for application submission

- (1) Arrangement of the required documents
 - One set of original documents listed above.
 - A set of documents submitted must be combined by a pair of tongs or pincers. (Do not use stapler to bind them)
 - The application documents must be arranged in the same order as written on the 'Required documents Table'.
 - Individual certificates or documents must be in order of original one front, and notarized one back.
 - Each required document must be numbered and labeled on the top right corner as the following.

(2) The forms and address

- Download and complete the Application Forms from the SNU, Office of Admissions website (http://en.snu.ac.kr/apply/info) Overview -- Announcements: Admission Guideline for 2019 KGSP Graduate Programs (University Recommendation)
- Send your complete application packet by post or personal drop-off by <u>Feb. 28th, 2019 (5PM)</u> to the following address.

Office of Admissions Contact Information

Mailing Address:

KGSP Manager, Bldg 150, Rm 401, Office of Admissions, Seoul National University, 1 Gwanak-ro, Gwanak-gu, Seoul 08826

Homepage: http://en.snu.ac.kr/apply/info

Email: hsong12@snu.ac.kr

Telephone: +82-2-880-6971, 6977

Fax: +82-2-873-5021

7. Important Notes for All Applicants

- All documents should be in **English or Korean**. Documents in any other language should be accompanied by a notarized English or Korean translation issued by the country in which the document was originally produced.
- Original documents should be submitted. Should they be unavailable, however, copies must be <u>authenticated</u> by the issuing institution confirming that they are the same with the originals.
- In case of submitting photocopied documents, applicants MUST have the copies
 notarized or apostilled copies and then submit the notarized or apostilled copies. For any documents that cannot be reissued, applicants are advised to submit notarized or apostilled copies of the original.
- Please note, changes and/or cancellations will not be permitted after the completion of documentation submission.
- Incomplete or incorrect information presented in the application documents may lead to rejection of the application by Selection Committee and scholarship will be rescinded even after entry into Korea.
- Write the exact title of the programs offered for admission from <Appendix 1>.
- Applicant is responsible for any disadvantage resulting from error, omission or incorrect input of requested information. Please pay careful attention while completing the application form to avoid

any issues. Once the application has been submitted, changes (including the application information or desired program of their choice) cannot be made. Desired program of study cannot be changed even after the enrollment.

- Additional documents may be required from the applicant, based on the policy of the specific college or department.
- Dual applications are not accepted. Applicants must apply for this program via one Organization (Korean Embassy or Domestic University). If the applicant receives recommendation from more than one University or Organization, he/she will be disqualified.
- The recommendation letters must be written by two different recommenders, who can give assessment on the applicant's academic abilities. Applicants must get sealed recommendation letters from their recommenders. Letters with broken seals at the time of applying will be considered invalid.
- The applicant's name on the application form MUST be identical to the applicant's passport name.
- The scores of the language proficiency test must be valid at the time of applying.
- As for the submission of the published papers and awards, applicants are allowed to submit photocopies.
- All of the submitted documents will not be returned. If you need to submit a document which cannot be issued again, please submit a validated/attested copy from the issuing institute or a notary office.
- Details of individual admission decisions for applicants cannot be disclosed.
- Applicants must accurately complete the health checklist truthfully. All successful candidates must take a comprehensive medical exam before orientation. In accordance with the requirements of the Korea Immigration Service and the KGSP Program, the candidates who are judged to be physically unfit for this program will not be accepted.

8. Selection Criteria

- (1) Evaluation will be based on the submitted documents including the self-introduction essay, study plan, recommendation letters, transcript and any other additional supplementary materials. Based on the documents submitted, applicant's academic ability, language ability, aspirations for study abroad, potential societal contribution, and anticipated contribution towards the relationship between the two countries will be evaluated for the purposes of selection.
- (2) Applicants selected from the document review process will be notified to attend an in-person or a phone interview.

9. Duration of Korean Government Scholarship Program

- Master's (Sep. 1, 2019 ~ Aug. 31, 2022): 1 year. of Korean language study + 2 years of Master's
- Doctoral (Sep. 1, 2019 ~ Aug. 31, 2023): 1 year. of Korean language study + 3 years of Doctoral
 Scholarship period for the degree program cannot and will not be extended.
 - KGSP scholars with advanced TOPIK levels (Levels 5 and 6)

- Those who have the advanced levels at the time of applying will be exempt from the 1-year Korean language program. The exempt period will be deducted from the total scholarship period, down to 2 years for Master's degrees and to 3 years for Doctoral degrees.
- Those who achieve the advanced levels on TOPIK within the first 6 months of the language program will be exempt from the Korean language program and must start their degree programs in the following semester. The exempt period will be deducted from the total scholarship period, down to 2.5 years for Master's degrees and 3.5 years for Doctoral degrees.
- Scholars who are exempted from taking the Korean language course must take their degree course starting from September 1st, 2019.

10. Korean Language Course

- 1 year of Korean Language Study is required for all recipients of Korean Government Scholarship at the designated language institution.
- If the student fails to obtain TOPIK score of level 3 and or above at the end of the given year, his/her scholarship recipient status and the offered admission by SNU will be rescinded.
- Language Institution: Student will be assigned to one of the Institutions designated by NIIED. The main language institution placement principle is different area from the finally chosen university of scholars in order to provide a chance of exploring variable Korean cultures and immerge on Korean language learning with professional environments for scholars.

11. Scholarship Payment Details

- Airfare
- Entry to Korea: An economy class flight ticket from KGSP scholar's home country to Korea
- Return: An economy class flight ticket from Korea to KGSP scholar's home country
- Entry flight ticket will NOT be provided to scholars who have resided in Korea at the time of applying to this program and up until the designated arrival period.
- The return flight ticket is only offered to KGSP scholars who successfully complete their degree coursework.
- The return flight is NOT offered to those who have withdrawn from the scholarship in the middle of their studies.
- Any fees domestic travel fees within a KGSP scholar's home country are NOT covered.
- International travel insurance is NOT covered.
- For KGSP scholars selected in China and Czech Republic: The flight tickets will be prepared and provided by the government of China and Czech Republic, respectively, in accordance with the agreement made between Korean government and the governments of two countries.
- Settlement Allowance: 200,000 KRW(Offered once)
- Monthly Allowance: Degree Program (Master's or Doctoral): 900,000 KRW per month
- Research Allowance
- Liberal Arts and Social Science Degrees: 210,000 KRW per semester

- Science, Technology and Engineering Degrees: 240,000 KRW per semester
- 1-Year Korean Language Training Fee: Fully covered
- Degree Tuition: Fully covered
- Tuition amount covered by NIIED is maximum 5million KRW, and the amount that exceeds 5 million KRW will be covered by scholar's university.
- University Admission fees are waived for KGSP scholars.
- Dissertation(Thesis) Printing Fee Reimbursement
- The actual cost of printing as written on the receipt will be reimbursed.
- The maximum amount is 500,000 KRW for degrees in Liberal Arts and Social Science and 800,000 KRW for degrees in Science, Technology and Engineering.
- Medical Insurance: 20,000 KRW per month
- Korean Proficiency Grants: 100,000 KRW per month
- This special funding is available for KGSP scholars with level 5 and 6 on TOPIK.
- Degree Completion Grants: 100,000 KRW (offered once)
- Offered for the KGSP scholars who return to their home countries after completing their degree coursework under the scholarship.
- NOT offered for the KGSP scholars who decide to stay in Korea after the completion of their degree coursework.
- * Korean Proficiency Grants, Korean Language Training Fee, Degree Program Tuition, and Thesis (Dissertation) Printing Fee are ONLY given to degree-pursuing scholars.

<Appendix 1>Programs Offered for Admission

- ** Reorganization in the SNU academic affairs can result in the following: change in the name, integration, division, closure of a field of study (major).
- * '#' means a Dept. or Major of WCU (World Class University) program.
- * SNU only recruits degree programs. Research programs are not applicable.

Division	Department	Master's	Doctoral
	Korean Language and Literature(Classical Korean Literature)		0
	Korean Language and Literature(Modern Korean Literature)		0
	Korean Language and Literature(Korean Linguistics)	0	0
	Chinese Language and Literature(Literature)	0	0
	Chinese Language and Literature(Linguistics)	0	0
	English Language and Literature(Literature)		0
	English Language and Literature(Linguistics)	0	0
	French Language and Literature(Literature)	0	0
	French Language and Literature(Linguistics)	0	0
	German Language and Literature(Literature)	0	0
	German Language and Literature(Linguistics)	0	0
	Russian Language and Literature	0	0
	Hispanic Language and Literature	0	0
	Linguistics	0	0
College of Humanities	Korean History	0	0
	Asian History		0
	Western History	0	0
	Philosophy(Eastern Philosophy Major)		0
	Philosophy(Western Philosophy Major)		0
	Religious Studies		0
	Aesthetics	0	0
	Archaeology and Art History(Archaeology Major)	0	0
	Archaeology and Art History(Art History Major)	0	0
	Department of Asian Languages and Civilizations	0	Χ
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Classical Studies Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Cognitive Science Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Comparative Literature Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Archival Science Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Performing Arts Studies Major)	0	0
	Department of Political Science and International Relations (Political Science Major)	0	0
	Department of Political Science and International Relations (International Relations Major)	0	0
College of Social	Economics	0	0
Sciences	Sociology	0	0
	Anthropology	0	0
	Geography	0	0
	Social Welfare	0	0

	Communication	\circ	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Gender Studies Major)	0	0
	Business Administration(Management Information Systems)		0
	Business Administration(Strategy and International Business Management)	0	0
College of Business	Business Administration(Marketing)	0	0
Administration	Business Administration(Operations Management)	0	0
	Business Administration(Organizational Behavior and Human Resource Management)	0	0
	Business Administration(Finance)	0	0
	Business Administration(Accounting)	0	0
College of Agriculture	Agricultural Economics & Rural Development(Agricultural and Resource Economics Major)	0	0
and Life Sciences	Agricultural Economics & Rural Development(Regional Information Major)	0	0
College of Law	Law	0	0
	Education	Χ	0
	Education(Foundations of Education Major)	0	Χ
	Education(Education Technology Major)	0	Χ
	Education(Educational Counseling Major)	0	Χ
	Education(Education Administration Major)	0	Χ
	Education(Life-Long Education Major)	0	Χ
College of Education	Korean Language Education(Korean as a Foreign Language Education Major)	0	0
	Foreign Language Education(English Language Major)	0	0
	Foreign Language Education(German Language Major)	0	0
	Foreign Language Education(French Language Major)	0	0
	Social Studies Education(Social Studies Major)	0	0
	Social Studies Education(History Major)	0	0
	Social Studies Education(Geography Major)	0	0
	Ethics Education	0	0
	Physical Education(Sports Science Major)	0	0
	Physical Education(Human Exercise Major)	0	0
	Physical Education(Global Sports Management Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Music Education Major)	0	0
College of Education	Interdisciplinary Programs(Fine Arts Education Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Home Economics Education Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Special Education Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Environment Education Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Early Childhood Education Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Global Education Cooperation Major)	0	0
College of Human	Consumer Science	0	0
Ecology	Child Development and Family Studies	0	0
Graduate School of	Public Administration(Public Administration Major)	0	0
Public Administration	Public Administration(Public Policy Major)	0	0

	Public Administration(Global Public Administration Major)	0	Х
Graduate School of Environmental Studies	Environmental Planning(Environmental Planning Major)	Χ	0
	International Studies		0
	International Studies(International Commerce Major)	0	Χ
Graduate School of	International Studies(International Cooperation Major)	0	Χ
International Studies	International Studies(International Area Studies Major)	0	Χ
	International Studies(Korean Studies Major)	0	Χ
	Mathematical Sciences	0	0
	Statistics	0	0
	Physics & Astronomy(Physics Major)	0	0
	Physics & Astronomy(Astronomy Major)	0	0
	Chemistry	0	0
	Biological Sciences	0	0
lo 11	Earth and Environmental Sciences	0	0
College of Natural Sciences	Interdisciplinary Programs(History and Philosophy of Science Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Genetic Engineering Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Neuroscience Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs (Bioinformatics Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs (Computational Science and		
	Technology Major)	0	0
lo u	Nursing(Maternal-Child and Psychiatric-Mental Health Nursing)	0	0
College of Nursing	Nursing(Adult Health Nursing)	0	0
	Nursing(Community Health and Nursing Care Systems)	0	0
	Plant Science(Crop Science and Biotechnology Major)	0	0
	Plant Science(Horticultural Science and Biotechnology Major)	0	0
	Forest Sciences(Forest Environmental Science Major)	0	0
	Forest Sciences(Environmental Materials Science Major)	0	0
	Agricultural Biotechnology	0	0
	Agricultural Biotechnology(#Biomodulation Major)	0	0
	Landscape Architecture & Rural Systems		
10 II	Engineering(Landscape Architecture Major)	0	Х
College of Agriculture	Landscape Architecture & Rural Systems Engineering(Rural		
and Life Sciences	Systems Engineering Major)	0	0
	Biosystems and Biomaterials Science &	\circ	0
	Engineering(Biosystems Engineering Major)	0	0
	Biosystems and Biomaterials Science & Engineering(Biomaterials Engineering Major)	0	0
	Agricultural & Vocational Education	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Agricultural and Forest		_
	Meteorology Major)	\circ	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Agricultural Genomics Major)	0	0
Graduate School of International Agricultural Technology	Department of International Agricultural Technology	0	X
	Mathematics Education	0	0
College of Education	Science Education(Physics Major)	0	0
	Science Education(Chemistry Major)	0	0

	Science Education(Biology Major)	\circ	0
	Science Education(Earth Sciences Major)	0	0
College of Human	Food and Nutrition	0	0
Ecology	Textiles, Merchandising and Fashion Design	0	0
College of Pharmacy	Pharmacy	0	0
	Department of Public Health Sciences(Division of Public		
Craduata Cabaal of	Health)	0	0
Graduate School of Public Health	Department of Public Health Sciences(Division of Health Care Management and Policy)	0	0
	Department of Environmental Health Sciences	0	0
	Environmental Planning(City and Regional Planning)	0	Χ
	Environmental Planning(Transportation Studies)	0	Х
Graduate School of	Environmental Planning(Environmental Management)	0	Χ
Environmental Studies	Department of Landscape Architecture	0	Χ
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Landscape Architecture)	X	0
Graduate School of Convergence Science and Technology	#Molecular Medicine and Biopharmaceutical Science	0	0
	Architecture	0	0
	Energy Systems Engineering	0	0
	Electrical and Computer Engineering	0	0
	Computer Science and Engineering	0	0
	Materials Science and Engineering	0	0
	Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering(Mechanical Engineering Major)	0	0
	Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering(Aerospace Engineering Major)		0
College of Engineering	Mechanical and Aerospace Engineering(Multiscale Mechanical Design Major)	0	0
	Civil and Environmental Engineering	0	0
	Chemical and Biological Engineering	0	0
	Industrial Engineering	0	0
	Naval Architecture and Ocean Engineering	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Bioengineering Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Urban Design Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Technology Management Economics and Policy Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Offshore Plant Engineering)	0	Х
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Space System)	0	0
	Department of Transdisciplinary Studies(Nano Science and Technology)	0	0
Graduate School of Convergence Science and Technology	Department of Transdisciplinary Studies(Digital Contents and Information Studies)	0	0
	Department of Transdisciplinary Studies(Intelligent Systems)	0	0
	Department of Transdisciplinary Studies(Biomedical Radiation Sciences)	0	0
	Department of Biomedical Sciences	0	0
	Medicine(Anatomy Major)	0	0
College of Medicine	Medicine(Pathology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Microbiology and Immunology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Preventive Medicine Major)	0	0

	Medicine(Tropical Medicine and Parasitology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(History of Medicine & Medical Humanities Major)	\circ	0
	Medicine(Forensic Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Health Policy and Management Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Biomedical Engineering Major)	Χ	0
	Medicine(Medical Education Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Internal Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Surgery Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Pediatrics Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Obstetrics and Gynecology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Psychiatry Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Orthopedic Surgery Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Urology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Otorhinolaryngology-Head & Neck Surgery Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Thoracic and Cardiovascular Surgery Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Neurosurgery Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Ophthalmology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Radiology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Anesthesiology and Pain Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Reconstructive Plastic Surgery Major)	0	0
College of Medicine	Medicine(Radiation Oncology Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Laboratory Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Rehabilitation Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Nuclear Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Family Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Emergency Medicine Major)	0	0
	Medicine(Translational Medicine Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Cancer Biology Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs (Clinical Pharmacology and Therapeutics Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Medical Informatics Major)	0	0
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Medical Informatics Major) Interdisciplinary Programs(Stem Cell Biology)		_
	Dental Sciences(Preventive & Social Dentistry)	X	0
	Dental Sciences(Preventive & Social Dentistry) Dental Sciences(Program in Neuroscience)	0	0
			0
	Dental Sciences(Healthcare Management and Informatics)	0	0
	Dental Sciences(Cancer and Developmental Biology)	0	0
School of Dentistry	Dental Sciences(Molecular Genetics)	0	0
	Dental Sciences(Oral Pathology)	X	0
	Dental Sciences(Prosthodontics)	0	0
	Dental Sciences(Oral and Maxillofacial Surgery)	0	0
	Dental Sciences(Pediatric Dentistry)	0	0
	Dental Sciences(Oral and Maxillofacial Radiology)	0	0
	Dental Sciences(Dental Anesthesiology)	0	0
	Veterinary Medicine(Veterinary Biomedical Sciences)	0	0
College of Veterinary Medicine	Veterinary Medicine(Veterinary Pathobiology and Preventive Medicine)	0	0
	Veterinary Medicine(Veterinary Clinical Sciences)	0	0
College of Music	Music(Vocal Music Major)	0	0

	Music(Composition · Conducting Major)	0	0
	Music(Theory · Musicology Major)		0
	Music(Piano Major)	0	0
	Music(String Major)	0	0
	Music(Woodwind/ Brass Major)	0	0
	Music(Korean Instrumental Music·Korean Vocal Music Major)	0	0
	Music(Korean Composition·Korean Musicology Major)	0	0
	Crafts and Design(Ceramics Major)	0	Х
	Crafts and Design(Metalsmithing Major)	0	Х
	Crafts and Design(Visual Communication Design Major)	0	Х
	Crafts and Design(Industrial Design Major)	0	Х
	Crafts and Design(Crafts Major)	Х	0
	Crafts and Design(Design Major)	Χ	0
	Crafts and Design(Design History and Culture Major)	0	0
College of Fine Arts	Fine Arts(Oriental Painting Major)	Χ	0
	Fine Arts(Painting/Printmaking Major)	Χ	0
	Fine Arts(Sculpture Major)	Χ	0
	Oriental Painting	0	Х
	Painting(Painting Major)	0	Х
	Painting(Printmaking Major)	0	Х
	Sculpture	0	Х
	Interdisciplinary Programs(Arts Management)	0	0

<Appendix 2> Contact Information

Contents	Department	Telephone	Notes
Applicant	Office of Admissions	02-880-6971, 6977	
Eligibility			
Colleges/	College of Humanities	+82-2-880-6010, 6007	http://humanities.snu.ac.kr
Graduate Schools	College of Social Sciences	+82-2-880-6306, 6307	http://social.snu.ac.kr
	College of Natural Sciences	+82-2-880-6506, 6507	http://science.snu.ac.kr
	College of Nursing	+82-2-740-8804, 8807	http://nursing.snu.ac.kr
	College of Business Administration	+82-2-880-6919	http://cba.snu.ac.kr
	College of Engineering	+82-2-880-7009	https://eng.snu.ac.kr/
	College of Agriculture & Life	+82-2-880-4506	http://cals.snu.ac.kr
	Sciences		
	College of Fine Arts	+82-2-880-7454	http://art.snu.ac.kr
	College of Law	+82-2-880-7536, 7537	http://law.snu.ac.kr
	College of Education	+82-2-880-7607	http://edu.snu.ac.kr
	College of Human Ecology	+82-2-880-6804	http://che.snu.ac.kr
	College of Veterinary Medicine	+82-2-880-1208	http://vet.snu.ac.kr
	College of Pharmacy	+82-2-880-7825	http://www.snupharm.ac.kr
	College of Music	+82-2-880-7903	http://music.snu.ac.kr
	College of Medicine	+82-2-740-8033	http://medicine.snu.ac.kr
	School of Dentistry	+82-2-740-8790	http://dentistry.snu.ac.kr
	Graduate School of Public Health	+82-2-880-2708	http://health.snu.ac.kr
	Graduate School of Public	+82-2-880-5603	http://gspa.snu.ac.kr
	Administration		
	Graduate School of Environmental	+82-2-880-5642	http://gses.snu.ac.kr
	Studies		
	Graduate School of International	+82-2-880-8505	http://gsis.snu.ac.kr
	Studies		
	Graduate School of Convergence	+82-31-888-9125	http://convergence.snu.ac.kr
	Science and Technology		
	Graduate School of International	+82-33-339-5683	http://gsiat.snu.ac.kr
	Agricultural Technology		
Academic Affairs	Office of Academic Affairs	+82-2-880-5033	Leave of Absence,
			Course Management
		+82-2-880-5043	Corse Registrations
International	Office of International Affairs	+82-2-880-2519	Campus Life &
Students		+82-2-880- 4447	Certificate of Admission
Dormitory	Gwanak Residence Halls	+82-2-880-5404	Dormitory Information

<Appendix 3>

GPA Conversion Table

4.0 Scale	4.3 Scale	4.5 Scale	5.0 Scale	100 Points Scale
3.97 ~ 4.0	4.26 ~ 4.3	4.46 ~ 4.5	4.95 ~ 5.00	100
3.92 ~ 3.96	4.22 ~ 4.25	4.41 ~ 4.45	4.90 ~ 4.94	99
3.88 ~ 3.91	4.17 ~ 4.21	4.36 ~ 4.40	4.84 ~ 4.89	98
3.84 ~ 3.87	4.12 ~ 4.16	4.31 ~ 4.35	4.79 ~ 4.83	97
3.80 ~ 3.83	4.08 ~ 4.11	4.26 ~ 4.30	4.73 ~ 4.78	96
3.75 ~ 3.79	4.03 ~ 4.07	4.21 ~ 4.25	4.68 ~ 4.72	95
3.71 ~ 3.74	3.98 ~ 4.02	4.16 ~ 4.20	4.62 ~ 4.67	94
3.67 ~ 3.70	3.93 ~ 3.97	4.11 ~ 4.15	4.57 ~ 4.61	93
3.62 ~ 3.66	3.89 ~ 3.92	4.06 ~ 4.10	4.51 ~ 4.56	92
3.58 ~ 3.61	3.84 ~ 3.88	4.01 ~ 4.05	4.45 ~ 4.50	91
3.49 ~ 3.57	3.75 ~ 3.83	3.91 ~ 4.00	4.34 ~ 4.44	90
3.41 ~ 3.48	3.65 ~ 3.74	3.81 ~ 3.90	4.23 ~ 4.33	89
3.32 ~ 3.40	3.56 ~ 3.64	3.71 ~ 3.80	4.12 ~ 4.22	88
3.24 ~ 3.31	3.46 ~ 3.55	3.61 ~ 3.70	4.01 ~ 4.11	87
3.15 ~ 3.23	3.37 ~ 3.45	3.51 ~ 3.60	3.90 ~ 4.00	86
3.07 ~ 3.14	3.27 ~ 3.36	3.41 ~ 3.50	3.79 ~ 3.89	85
2.98 ~ 3.06	3.18 ~ 3.26	3.31 ~ 3.40	3.68 ~ 3.78	84
2.90 ~ 2.97	3.09 ~ 3.17	3.21 ~ 3.30	3.57 ~ 3.67	83
2.81 ~ 2.89	2.99 ~ 3.08	3.11 ~ 3.20	3.45 ~ 3.56	82
2.72 ~ 2.80	2.90 ~ 2.98	3.01 ~ 3.10	3.34 ~ 3.44	81
2.64 ~ 2.71	2.80 ~ 2.89	2.91 ~ 3.00	3.23 ~ 3.33	80

<Appendix 4> Seoul National University Campus Map:

http://www.useoul.edu/campus/maps

